MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF THE AMESCITY COUNCIL
AMES, IOWA AUGUST 18, 2009

The Ames City Council met in special session at 7:00 panthe 18' day of August, 2009, in the City
Council Chambers in City Hall, 515 Clark Avenue, pursuarawovith Mayor Ann Campbell presiding
and the following Council members present: Goodman, Larson, MiaRapken, and RiceEx officio
Member Keppy was also present. Council Member Doll was absent.

INTERMODAL FACILITY CONCEPT: CyRide Director of Transportation Sheri Kyras expldine
that the concept of a new intermodal facility in Amess only six weeks old, and that because the
grant application is due by September 15, the parties (CyRiwda State University, and the City of
Ames) are working in a very short time frame. She éxg@ththat what was presented to Council may
be refined before the actual grant application is turnets; Kyras gave a brief history of the
intermodal concept, and indicated that the transportagitwork in Ames is disjointed. She stated that
there has been a desire to build such a facility in the pat not enough funding. Ms. Kyras pointed
out that they are working quickly because the grant is fundednbyls money, and that they have
hired URS Surface Transportation as a consultant.

Bill Troe, Vice President of URS Surface Transportatgewve details about the Transportation
Investment Generating Economic Recovery (TIGER) gragram. He explained that it is a 100%
grant for local infrastructure projects, funded by stimuloads. Mr. Troe pointed out that the

program is competitive across the country, so thegamgeting against other cities for the grant
money. He said that the grant application is due Septembdautttbat the opportunity did not surface
until May; thus the rushed schedule.

Mr. Troe explained the potential benefits of an intermpdaéct, including connecting the city as well
as bringing in commercial opportunities. He stated that fabneconomic return standpoint, an
intermodal facility is not necessarily the first @& however, in the correct place it can be a verggoo
opportunity. He explained that the facility would not generate meplayment by itself, but would
provide an opportunity to help other projects that would generate engriby

Mr. Troe stated that an intermodal facility that i parking would provide a substantial
opportunity for redevelopment of the Campustown area, winatlid positively impact both lowa
State University (ISU) and Ames. He surmised thatlad&parking is an inhibiting factor in new
development or redevelopment in Campustown. Mr. Troe pointetthat the facility would advance
the ISU “master plan” of replacing on-campus parking Witlye parking. He mentioned additional
benefits, including connecting gaps in bike paths, and providing a comnettiantercity buses.

Mr. Troe reviewed the four potential sites around the commamd explained that they looked at
site suitability, economic benefits and impacts, operdtiomaacts, and relative costs as screening
criteria. He stated that three out of the four sites were omittedibechey did not meet the criteria
in one way or another; the lowa State Center sialse it was located almost entirely within the 100-
year flood plain, the Downtown site due to the proximitiyre railroad crossing, and the Stange Road
site due to the lack of potential economic return. He that the Campustown site, located at the
intersection of Hayward and Chamberlain, met all of the criterihwas the ideal location.



Mr. Troe gave details about the site, and explained thatitriently used as surface parking for
residence halls. He stated that the proposed facility would houseapgedy 750 parking spaces,

240 of which would be replacement of the current spacegakie other ideas for allocation of the
remaining parking, and explained that it would be worked outrmspecifically as the project

continues.

According to Mr. Troe, the Campustown location is sormawdroblematic relative to CyRide
operations. He explained that because the routes onth. M} have a very tight time schedule, to
divert off-route and provide inter-changing of passengenssters, etc., would throw those routes out
of sync. He said that additional CyRide buses would add hagis¢s, and that a circulator bus has
been included in the cost estimate as an alternative.

Mr. Troe stated that they also performed a directiosadibution study to decipher where people are
coming from and going to, and they concluded that the vastitpajould be headed to or from the
north, then traveling east or west along Lincoln Way. géee percentages of the directional
distribution study, and expounded on how the presence of the idi@rfacility would impact daily
traffic.

Mr. Troe reviewed current versus proposed traffic operations @nxliHe said that along Lincoln
Way, traffic is currently classified as “moderately gested.” He explained that the additional traffic
created by the intermodal facility would reduce levetofge one letter grade in the surrounding area.

As indicated by Mr. Troe, the potential uses of the stractauld include parking for the ISU
Department of Public Safety (DPS) vehicles, locker muarith paid showers, parking spaces for taxi
services, and retail space. He also explained the conesyphdrof the facility, and emphasized that
they would be retaining as well as adding green space.

Mr. Troe stated that the total cost of the facilitpul be approximately $43.6 million, and gave a
break-down of what each component would cost. He reséthat though the TIGER grant is 100%
funding, it is also competitive; therefore, if the Citgne to apply for 100% funding without any local
match, it could likely lose to other applications. He sutggkthat the City provide a 10% local match
and apply for 90% funding with the TIGER grant. He pointed outittigadlifficult to ascertain what
the local match should be, since this program is brand new and hanpthisinalyze.

Mr. Troe reviewed the detailed operations and maintenemsts, and calculated an approximate
expense of $350,000 annually to run the facility. He explainethiaédcility would also make money
via parking revenue, and gave a low-end revenue estim#87&{000 annually. Mr. Troe also
reviewed the short-term and long-term economic impaatjding potential job creation. He surmised
that roughly 400 short-term construction jobs and 300 long-tefioe gkctor jobs could be created
through the facility, annually generating another $55.3 and $52liénmof economic benefit,
respectively.

Council Member Goodman questioned how the long-term numtenes prvoduced, and Mr. Troe
explained that an input/output model that was used for egiimaHe also stated that typically, each
1,000 square feet of office space would have room for four new employees.

Council Member Rice asked about the parking spaces for&@3Jr. Troe discussed further details



of parking space allocation. He stated that they showdflleeéo accommodate the vast majority of the
DPS vehicles.

Transit Board Member Robert Anders asked about the shattte that was mentioned, and
guestioned whether these routes would be junctions for mblées. Ms. Kyras replied that if they
were to receive the grant funds, the purple route would be re-routedhhie intermodal facility,
leaving a fairly large gap in the transit system. She aguahat the best way to address that issue
would be a special shuttle service providing connectitretoampus area, where riders would be able
to transfer onto any other CyRide route.

Mr. Anders asked if the site would be compliant with thi@izg regulations for the area. City Planner
Charlie Kuester replied that the site is zoned SGA &p&advernment/Airport, and is not subject to
City zoning regulations. He explained that the City and/&fsity would work together to ensure that
the structure was compatible with the surrounding zoning.

Council Member Popken asked if street improvements could lel@ttin the grant application as
part of the local match, since the streets would be emglhgavier bus traffic. Mr. Troe stated that
they have already included $1.2 million for roadway improvememtmarily for Sheldon and
Hayward Avenues.

Mr. Goodman stated that as a retailer in Campustowprdifect was very exciting to him. He offered
the idea of bringing more CyRide routes south to bring memple through Campustown, and
suggested that it would have a great economic impact arglibrimany more jobs than what is
currently estimated. He also pointed out that a hub for all CyRide rdo¢ss’t exist.

Ms. Kyras stated that they had looked into bringing CyRidges through the facility, but that it
would add substantially more cost to the project than adding a circolegor

Transit Board Member Warren Madden said to keep in mind thgtrtposal had been prepared in
a very short period of time, and that a lot of issuelsregjuire further analysis and information. He
urged the Council to determine whether the plan and Jsibrlike they work and whether they meet
the grant requirements. He said that this is a unique opjigytamd he does not want to get hung up
on issues that will require further exploration.

Ex Officio Member Keppy asked if the facility would draw peoaway from the commuter lots. Ms.
Kyras stated that she did not think that it would havergact since the commuter lot is free and the
parking ramp would not be. This incited a discussion about the cost ofgpatltite new facility.

Council Member Rice asked if offering a 12-15% local matdulds make a big difference in
competition or improve the chances of getting the grantTkére reiterated that it is difficult to say,
since the program is only eight weeks old and there is no trackiré¢ayor Campbell asked if the
90/10 split was standard for this kind of grant, and Mr. Troe stated that.it wa

Mr. Goodman stated that he had posed the idea of bringingd€yRutes through Campustown

because the economic impact could be substantially grestiee yrant application. Mr. Troe said that
it would come down to how much income the facility wdoddable to generate, and that it would not
be positive if transit dollars had to be added to offset re-routing buses.



Ken Kruempel, 2519 Timberland Road, Ames, asked if they hadatbel with the neighbors in the
area, and whether there were going to be expectationslabdstaping. Ms. Kyras said that they
have been interacting with the surrounding neighborhood, dtitite this is a quick project they had
not been able to gather a lot of people together for ingushort amount of time. She explained that
their next step would be outreach to the surrounding comm@tity said that they would like to
enhance the College Creek area, and that there would be “greensfeaituttee building.

Ken Larson, 3318 Woodland, Ames, expressed his disappointmeatwitier parking garage on the
lowa State campus, and said he hoped that instead of dyiegraroof they would cover the building
with ivy. He said that he felt that Ames has let housing go to tharfges and sprawl, and that this
building should be capped with five stories of housing. Hesaisessed his concern about the traffic
lights at Hyland Street and Lincoln Way. He said thdehe¢here were a lot of unanswered questions
about this project.

Catherine Scott, 1510 Roosevelt, Ames, asked if the parkieg vabuld be similar to what
Campustown is charging now. Mr. Troe stated that the garkite would be consistent with other
university rates.

Moved by Mahayni, seconded by Rice, to support the Amesariotial Facility TIGER Grant
Application.
Roll call vote: 5-0. Motion declared approved unanimously.

DISCUSSION ON REGULATIONS FOR ALLOWING WIND AND SOLAR USESWITHIN

AMES: Planning & Housing Director Steve Osguthorpe explained tti@a(City of Ames does not
currently allow energy production within residential areas. Hedtaat, since September of 2008,
staff has reviewed the concept of wind and solar enegyes. He said that the Planning and Zoning
Commission has been involved, and that public input has $imeght on several occasions. He
emphasized that public input was very important, and stadeth#y have gotten a range of feedback,
from very supportive to very opposed.

City Planner Sam Perry explained that under the City’s curremg,cemergy production is not a
permitted use in residential or commercial zones, but it is allowedustrial zones. He stated
that the impetus behind the research was an inquiry from a redigengpiarty owner about free-
standing solar panels.

Mr. Perry said that many other cities in lowa are working on tmsept, and a few have passed
regulations for small wind towers. He said there are not many riegslébr solar panels as far as
location, height, and setback. He said that City staff wanted tornaieegall view and deal with
both wind and solar at the same time, because it's the same use diingedretricity.

Mr. Perry stated that staff has proposed a three-level approagipforal of applications:
administrative, special use permit through the Zoning Board of Adjastared a variance. He
said that other cities have required going straight to the specialmsie pénich requires
notification of all neighbors, for putting up a wind turbine.

According to Mr. Perry, other cities have a minimum lot size reqeingnbut he stated that staff
did not feel that was necessary. He said they didn’t see that havingraum lot size as well as a



setback accomplished a goal.

Mr. Perry showed the Council examples of solar energy systems. Reganofi-mounted solar
panels, he stated that if they were tilted up from the roof plane itlwequire a special use
permit, unless they were not visible from the street.

Council Member Mahayni left the meeting.

Mr. Perry explained the concept of “net metering,” which would allmsd¢twho have a surplus to
send it back into the grid and get credit, which they could use when theindasrhigher than
their supply. He stated that if there is a surplus over the long-tenm vioeld be a cash payout.
He clarified that most of the systems are too small to be gemeexttessive power. Mr. Perry
stated that the proposed zoning regulations would speak of utilitiegeimesal sense, not just the
City of Ames utilities, and would cover anything within the cityitém

Mr. Perry said that both flush-mounted and tilted solar panels wouldobe=dll but that tilted
would require a higher level of approval. Council Member Rice askedsbthe panels were
adjustable for seasons. Mr. Perry replied that a lot of them are, bustialy the most optimal
angle is determined and the panel is fixed to that angle year-round.

Council Member Goodman asked if any zoning regulations would applysf i$a room or a
window coming out of the house at a certain angle. Mr. Perry said ¢habrting code speaks to
minor projections, and this is a somewhat parallel approach.

Mr. Perry stated that a typical residential wind turbine produces titode kilowatts. He
explained that the Net Metering Agreement would be for up to 10 kilowattstriElServices
Director Don Kom said that they wanted to put cap on the agreemetiteyr@ould easily handle,
and ten kilowatts was good number to work with. He explained that ifs@nveanted to go
higher than ten, they would need to work with Electric Servicestljiréle pointed out that
anything above 10 kilowatts would be a fairly large and substantial diecgipment.

Mr. Perry said that there have been inquiries from industrial/coaehproperties as well, and he
explained that the draft policy document is designed to cover the @tytireboth residential and
commercial. He said that they hope to make these permitted inzorexybut that the level of
criteria would vary depending on the zone. He pointed out that mostgtiaedirequire a setback
of 110% of the turbine tower height, which would rule out most subdivisisinidmes.

Council Member Larson asked if staff had come up with anything defate decibel maximum.
Mr. Perry stated that the noise ordinance is 55 decibels for Ames aasthe systems have an
inverter inside the house rather than up on the tower. He stateletisgstem should not be
audible at the property line. Mr. Osguthorpe pointed out that a constantifowould be irritating
even if it's quiet, because it would never stop.

Council Member Popken said that there may not be a noise probletlyjrbtut if the bearings on
the turbine wear out, it could cause a much larger issue. Mr. Osguthorpelstitbdyt are

relying on the integrity of technical research, and that sorastiirey may not know if it's audible
until it's up. He pointed out that the technology is improving, and someafaarers have much



quieter options.

Mr. Rice asked if there is a 110% setback for power poles. He questionettheviidterence was
between a pole with lines on it and a wind turbine. Mr. Perry pointed duhéna is something
turning on top of the small wind turbines. He stated that they did notdsge-driven reason for
the setback; however, there may be an indirect purpose such as m@serat mitigation. He said
that most turbines are rated to withstand winds of up to 145 mph, whiclost @auble the
required 90 mph in the building code. Mr. Osguthorpe said that staff did not findtarthatahe
turbines fall over, but that it is always a statistical possibil&y they could.

Mr. Perry showed a map of lot sizes in Ames, and discussed lot size megniseand tower
placement. Mr. Popken asked how many residential lots were in Ante§jraPerry replied that
there are approximately 10,000.

Mr. Rice stated that he had a problem with the concept of setbacks,é&easor light poles
could be just as likely to fall. Mr. Osguthorpe said that the setback anlydor the possibility
that they might fall, but also for aesthetic reasons.

Mr. Larson said that some people just want to feel like they're doesggart to help the
environment, even if they’re not doing much at all. He said thatuid oot envision many lots in
the city that would practically be able to generate much wind energy. $dgutbrpe said that it
may not be practical, but that it should at least be allowed in the code.

Mr. Larson stated that he would rather try wind energy in the conrahencl industrial zones first.
He said that it does not seem practical for a typical subdivision. MutBarpe offered the
thought of setting aside a common lot with a common generator ideéslopments. This
spurred a discussion about “sun rights,” and what the different pangiets would be
surrounding an alternative energy system.

Mr. Popken asked if this would regulate something such as a small apastridding with a
natural gas generator. Mr. Perry replied that this is only in regardagwable energy generation,
and the regulation of the outdoor equipment and the placement of it.

Mr. Perry mentioned freestanding solar panels, and stated thatahé&/net be allowed between
the front setback line and property line. He explained that it is lsgsble to have freestanding
solar panels in the front, and that there are other communities wimilar approach.

Ken Larson, 3318 Woodland, Ames, commented that it is more efficient toepp&nels on the
roof. He said that if Ames wants to encourage solar developmeptssth®uld run east-west. Mr.
Osguthorpe stated that unfortunately it would not work for many egiBtbuses with roofs built in
the wrong direction, and that the challenge is how to regulate it.

Mr. Goodman pointed out that if a shed or playhouse was built in the yaodld te fine, and
guestioned why a solar panel would be regulated. Mr. Osguthorpe statedythedrited to make
sure that they start out slowly and carefully, and that they couldpolegisen the regulations over
time. Mr. Goodman said that he likes the idea and thinks it's a greatwppo



Mr. Ken Larson stated that he thinks that the City should prohéitisk of covenants in
subdivisions and homeowners associations that would othermissdiar installations on the
whim of what someone’s aesthetics standard is. He said thatewbetimot something looks good
is subjective. He said that owners of solar panels would need to pgheteaivestment, and
should be allowed to have a neighbor’s tree trimmed if it is intagfavith the solar panel. He also
stated that in a wooded town like Ames, wind generation isn’t pahctic

Ken Kruempel, 2519 Timberland Road, Ames, asked whose expense it would be talpeotec
electric utility system from the wind generators when theme'sutage on the City's system. Mr.
Kom explained that as part of the permitting process, the potentiat ovauld have to submit
technical specs to Electric Services, and there would be certamum equipment requirements.
He stated that the requirements would be the responsibility of #repswiel or wind turbine
owner.

Mr. Kom said that they will also have to put in specialized meteringusecthe system would
need a meter that runs in both directions. He explained that the cugtems on homes only run
one direction, and as part of the permitting process they would haveihoppaper equipment.
Mr. Kruempel asked if the protection equipment was expensive, to whicdkdvir replied that it
is quite expensive. Mr. Kruempel said that people need to know up-froritithadi cheap. Mr.
Kom stated that Electric Services would be happy to meet withsteerparties one-on-one to
discuss details.

Mr. Larson stated that he liked staff's approach on solar energy,dabheerns about doing
wind in residential areas. He said he would rather see that triechimereial and industrial areas
first. He said that he was definitely not ready for freestanding tuirbines in residential areas.

Mr. Popken said that he would lean towards the liberal side of allolimgstto happen than on a
restrictive side. Mr. Goodman stated that he sees both points onneirgy,eand suggested that
perhaps wind could be approved on a case-by-case basis. Mr. Rice saichttia gfiteed of
alternative energy development in the near future, he did not tler@ahincil should lock into a
“no,” and he said that he agreed with Mr. Popken about taking a more &ibprahch.

Mayor Campbell stated that the solar aspect would be easier to meaedfavith at this stage
than the wind, and questioned whether the two issues should be marriedriylsa®l that the
long-term goal is to separate them, and that staff had anticipatedntavould be more
controversial.

Mr. Popken said that he would be in favor of getting the solar moved alaridygaince it is less
controversial. Mr. Goodman said that he agreed with splitting themaioluthat they should not
forget about wind. Mr. Larson concurred.

Moved by Popken, seconded by Rice to put a priority on completing the setgy @rdinance,
and subsequently move forward with wind energy separately.
Vote on motion: 4-0. Motion declared approved unanimously.

Mr. Larson said that it is important to stay on track after ther sofinished to get some resolution
to wind energy, concentrating on commercial and industrial zonesaiti¢hat that may help to get



a feel from the community before they go forward with residentiad w

COMMENTS: Moved by Popken, seconded by Goodman, to direct staff to put in a 10-day property
owner notification requirement prior to a hearing in the gasliise@greement condemnation
portion.

Vote on motion: 4-0. Motion declared approved unanimously.

Moved by Goodman, seconded by Rice, to have staff give a recommendatibihe legality of
having second and third readings of ordinances at Council workshopSoghiman stated that it
may help move things more quickly for the customer. A discussion ensoetvehether it would
be fair to the public to do second and third readings at a workshop, simeéticenay not be as
likely to attend the workshop meetings.

Vote on motion: 2-2. Voting Aye: Goodman, Rice. Voting Nay: Larson, &agdWotion failed.

ADJOURNMENT: The Special Meeting adjourned at 10:02 p.m.

Diane R. Voss, City Clerk Ann H. Campbell, Mayor

Emily Burton, Recording Secretary



